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INVITATION  

TO SUBMIT REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL FOR 
UTILITY BILLING SOFTWARE – RFP #2025-007 

 
Dear Proposer: 
 
The City of Thomasville is inviting all qualified vendors to submit a proposal to provide Utility Billing software 
solutions. The City of Thomasville desires to contract with a single vendor for all software and software 
maintenance, installation, conversion and support. However, the City of Thomasville reserves the right to 
evaluate each software application module on its own standard of performance, regardless of whether other or 
remaining application modules of the offeror are considered by the City of Thomasville. The City of 
Thomasville reserves the right to award the system to any one (1) offeror or a combination of offerors.   
 
The City of Thomasville reserves the right to reject any and all proposals, to waive minor irregularities, to 
consider minor variations of specifications that are clearly detailed, and to accept the most favorable proposal 
that appears to be in the best interest of the City of Thomasville.   
 
Please submit a written detailed proposal for a comprehensive, fully integrated system, professional services and 
associated fees to implement, troubleshoot and maintain the system. Please structure your proposal in accordance with 
the requirements and specifications outlined in this Request for Proposal. Your proposal should address the issues and 
requirements in order as outlined on the following pages. Any deviations, additions, or deletions should be so noted.   
 
Proposals shall be sealed and plainly marked “RFP #2025-007 UTILITY BILLING SOFTWARE” and be 
received by the City Purchasing Office on or before Wednesday, July 16, 2025 @ 11:00 AM. Proposers shall submit 
one (1) signed original, three (3) paper copies of the Technical Proposal WITHOUT pricing , one (1) USB Flash drive 
with a copy of the Technical Proposal WITHOUT pricing, and one (1) separately sealed paper copy of the Proposal 
Project’s pricing/cost. Please submit your response in a sealed envelope, addressed as follows: 
 

City of Thomasville 
RFP #2025-007 Utility Billing Software 

Attn: Purchasing Administrator, Lori McCardle 
P.O. Box 1540 or (111 Victoria Place) 

Thomasville, GA 31799 (31792) 
 
Bids and all Addendums are available on the internet at www.thomasville.org. Click the WORK link and under 
the heading labeled “Doing Business with the City” click the link labeled “Bid Opportunities”. 
 
If you have any questions concerning this RFP, please email Lori McCardle, at lori.mccardle@thomasville.org 
or purchasing@thomasville.org. Contact with City of Thomasville personnel regarding this solicitation, 
other than inquiries to the specific Procurement Agent noted above may be grounds for elimination from 
the selection process. 

 

http://www.thomasville.org/
mailto:lori.mccardle@thomasville.org
mailto:purchasing@thomasville.org
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SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
1.0 Introduction and Background 
 
The City of Thomasville is seeking to purchase and implement a Utility Billing Software Package to replace 
our current billing platform, which will allow us to manage customer accounts and bill utility customers.  

The City of Thomasville is a member of the Municipal Electric Authority of Georgia and provides utility 
services to a broad customer base. The Utilities Department serves 17,756 electric customers, 12,536 water 
customers, 3,909 gas customers, 9,373 sewer customers and 14,323 refuse customers within its service territory.  

As we look forward to the future, the City of Thomasville believes we may be better served by partnering with 
a vendor who can provide billing for current and future services, provide excellent software support, and account 
for our current and future business rules as our customers’ needs change. 
 
2.0 Objective 
 
The City of Thomasville has the following core objectives in implementing a new utility billing solution: 
  

• Provide dual roles as a billing system and a Customer Information System. 
  

• Provide billing functions for essential utility services such as electricity (including residential and 
commercial consumption and demand), gas, water, sewer, stormwater, and refuse, with the capability 
to accommodate various rate types and structures. 

  
• Pull in meter readings from the City of Thomasville’s Meter Data Management provider (Parsons), as 

well as the ability to pull readings in manual form from a Route Manager solution (Northrop 
Grumman).  

  
• Provide a mobile customer service work order system to manage all services. 

 
• Implement and integrate various external payment methods by offering a user-friendly online payment 

system, mobile applications for both Android and iOS and automated pay-by-phone capabilities. 
Additionally, utilize Kiosks and Invoice Cloud as our payment processors to ensure secure 
transactions and seamless user experience across all platforms. 

 
• Provide various interfaces to 3rd party vendors via flat files or API based upon predetermined methods 

and schedules. 
 

• Provide a solution to create custom reports as requested by users. Automated reporting is also a 
requirement. 

  
• Provide a means for the collection of bad debt funds for both active and inactive customers. 

  
• Selection of a cost-effective solution that is easy to implement and manage. The solution selected will 

also provide open access to allow City IT services to provide the Utilities department with the 
customer support it requires.  

  
• Selection of a Vendor with a proven solution that will provide the “Primary” base functional 

requirements within the most cost-effective manner, achieving the best Total Cost of Ownership. 
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3.0 Summary 
 

The utility billing software must provide a comprehensive and complete solution to meet the “Primary” 
requirements per the functional, performance, information, and technology specifications contained herein. The 
City of Thomasville’s utility billing system will be implemented as the central platform for customer resource 
management, monthly billing, and accepting payments. The utility billing software is expected to have a minimum 
functional operational life of fifteen (15) years with regular updates, which could expand that functional lifespan 
for many additional years. 
 
The core capabilities of the utility billing system must include the following: 
 

• Support ALL the current City of Thomasville rates for services listed in the functional requirements. 
 

• Must support future rates that may include, but not be limited to, Time-of-Use, Critical Peak Pricing, Real-
Time Pricing, Pre-pay, and other rates necessary to support the City of Thomasville’s future goals. 
 

• Provide a common Customer Relationship Management interface for ease of customer management. 
 

• Provide customer-facing application(s) that allow for online or mobile payments. 
 

• Prioritize security for transmitted and at-rest data as well as sensitive customer information that could be 
displayed on-screen. 
 

• Support integration with the City of Thomasville’s existing and future Information Technology (IT) 
systems as defined in the functional specifications below. 
 

The information gathered through this RFP process may be used to adjust the project scope, if needed. 
Depending upon the costs of implementation and the availability of resources, the City may consider 
accelerating or postponing the implementation of one or more of the phases listed in the proposal. 
 
4.0 Implementation Plan 
 
It is recognized that an “out-of-box” solution may not meet the City’s needs in all areas. Therefore, the City is 
willing to evaluate current processes and adjust if/ where practical, or work with the vendor to customize certain 
aspects of the software. It is the intent of the City to keep any customization to a minimum and to adhere to 
industry’s best practices, in order to decrease costs and facilitate ongoing support. 

 

In general, the vendor is expected to: 
 

• Deliver a quality and fully integrated Microsoft Windows 365-based software solution, that will 
meet or exceed the RFP requirements. 

 
• Provide qualified and experienced project management and technical resources to advise stakeholders 

during the analysis, design, implementation and support phases of the project. 
 

• Provide the appropriate technical expertise to configure all related files to make the system 100% 
operational. 
 

• Provide comprehensive education and training for system operations and configuration. Education 
should be provided in a hands-on environment with complete and necessary documentation and 
training manuals. 
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• Provide conversion labor to convert existing system data into the new applications. The vendor shall 
work with the current system vendor to ensure a 100% successful data conversion. 

 
• Ensure all modules are complete, have been tested, and are ready for operation when training is 

complete. 
 

• Provide follow-up training as needed, as well as dedicated support and customer service after the initial 
training and implementation of the system. 
 

The City of Thomasville requires that each vendor prepare a detailed implementation plan outlining the required 
tasks, estimated hours, responsibilities, major deliverables, and timing. At a minimum, the RFP response will 
cover the following areas: 
 

• Implementation approach 

• Environment Installation, including supporting software (OS, DBMS, etc.) and hardware platform 
installation and configuration, if necessary. The vendor shall be responsible for assisting the City of 
Thomasville with configuring all required environments, including testing, training, and production. 

• Data migration/conversion plan from the City of Thomasville’s existing billing solution to the proposed 
software solution. 

• Application setup (tailoring, configuration, end-user setup) 

• Application-level security design and configuration 

• Design and development of custom reports 

5.0 Product Platform 

5.1 Technology Platform 

5.1.1  Please provide the name of the vendor (including their address) submitting the proposal that the City of 
Thomasville will use to enter into a contractual agreement. Additionally, include the name and contact 
information for a single point of contact, which should encompass their phone number, email address, 
physical address, and fax number. 

Response: 

5.1.2 The City of Thomasville requires that the proposed software package maintain confidentiality and 
adhere to high-security standards. What security measures does the software implement to protect data? 
Is the data encrypted while stored on the server, or is it only encrypted during transmission? 
Additionally, what level of encryption is utilized? 

Response: 
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5.1.3 Is the proposed software solution cloud-based or hosted on-premises? 

Response: 

 

5.1.4 Does the software support installation on a VMware host if it is deployed on-premises? 

Response: 

 

5.1.5 Does the proposed software solution support integration with Active Directory for authentication and 
permission management? 

Response: 

 

5.1.6 Outline the methods for accessing the proposed billing software, such as a web browser, custom 
application, remote desktop protocol (RDP) into the server, or a mobile app. 

Response: 

 

5.1.7 Runtime Environment: Identify all software present in the solution’s runtime environment, including 
any external dependencies. Specify any third-party software that Thomasville must acquire to operate 
the billing solution that is not included in the bundled offering provided by the proposer. 

Response: 

 

5.1.8 If third-party licenses are necessary to access the proposed software (e.g., Microsoft SQL Client Access 
Licenses), please specify below. Include any costs associated with third-party licensing in the proposal. 

Response: 

 

5.1.9 Please include at least five (5) screenshots of the graphical user interface (GUI). 

Response: 
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5.1.10 Please specify the operating systems that the proposed billing solution supports. 

Response: 

5.1.11 Please create a hardware architecture diagram that outlines all the major system components necessary 
to fulfill the City of Thomasville's requirements for the proposed billing solution. Additionally, include 
recommended architecture designs for non-production environments, such as development, testing, and 
disaster recovery. 

Response: 

 

5.1.12 Determine the specific hardware requirements, such as memory, processor quantity, and 
interconnectivity, needed to support both production and non-production environments, including 
development, testing, and disaster recovery. 

Response: 

5.1.13 Provide or describe a typical release plan for new software releases. This plan should address customer 
communications, code release and transmittal, customer support under a service agreement, typical 
release implementation and impacted system availability, implementation instructions, and typical back-
out recommendations. 

Response: 

 

6.0 Functional Requirements   

The City of Thomasville has established specific processes and business rules for our organization and customers. 
The following requirements are essential to maintain standard operations for the City of Thomasville. 

6.1.1 The City of Thomasville utilizes Tyler Technologies’ financial management software for bookkeeping 
and accounting. The proposed software solution must integrate with Tyler Technologies’ Munis system. 
Please explain the methods used for this integration. 

Response: 
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6.1.2 The City of Thomasville requires printing to email (sending a copy via email attachment), printing to 
PDF, printing to a single hardware printer (paper copy), printing to multiple hardware printers at once 
(paper copy), and the capability to print to any of the above methods at the same time. 

Response: 

6.1.3 Can the proposed software solution generate reports, letters, work orders, and other documents as 
needed by the City of Thomasville staff? Is it easy to modify the formatting when required? 

Response: 

6.1.4 The City of Thomasville has collaborated with Milsoft Utility Solutions to offer IVR services for bill 
payments and account inquiries. Does the proposed software solution integrate with Milsoft’s IVR 
system? 

Response: 

6.1.5 The City of Thomasville's current billing software can create, store, and automatically generate 
correspondence letters for customers based on specific criteria. Does the proposed software solution 
support this functionality? Additionally, does it allow for the editing of letters and criteria as needed? 

Response: 

6.1.6 Does the proposed software solution support creating, editing, and managing signatures for automatic 
letters, in addition to storing the letters? 

Response: 

6.1.7 The City of Thomasville has partnered with a third-party vendor to create a customer web portal and 
mobile app. The authentication method for both the web portal and mobile application uses OAuth to 
access a database stored on the web server's backend system. If the proposed software solution includes 
its own mobile app or web portal, can it leverage the third-party backend database for authentication via 
OAuth for customer-accessed services? The aim is to allow customers to use a single set of login 
credentials for all customer-facing communication channels. 

Response: 
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6.1.8 Does the proposed software solution include built-in GIS mapping capabilities? If so, which services can 
be mapped? Please explain in detail the available GIS capabilities. 

Response: 

6.1.9 The City of Thomasville utilizes an ArcGIS server to map all the services we provide. Will the proposed 
software solution be able to integrate with our existing ArcGIS server? What types of data can be 
exchanged between the software and the current server? Additionally, can the City of Thomasville's 
server be used as the primary GIS server for the data accessed by the proposed software solution? 

Response: 

6.1.10 Does the proposed software solution allow the creation of routes for meter readings that can be accessed 
by staff in the field using mobile devices? 

Response: 

6.1.11 Does the proposed software solution have the capability to geocode individual services 
(latitude/longitude)? Can equipment assigned to a customer’s location also be geocoded? 

Response: 

6.1.12 The City of Thomasville offers refuse services and currently collaborates with Facility Dude Inc. by 
utilizing their Mobile311 product. This application is designed to create routes for garbage pickup and 
manage mobile work orders, such as reporting missing, broken, or skipped cans. Can the proposed 
software solution integrate with the Mobile311 application through an API? 

Response: 

6.1.13 The City of Thomasville’s current billing software features a screen that displays container numbers, 
account numbers, service codes, latitude/longitude, and pickup days for the specified refuse container. 
Does the proposed software solution have the capability to replicate this functionality? 

Response: 
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6.1.14 The City of Thomasville bills customers in cycles, which may include multiple routes within each cycle. 
Does the proposed software solution support billing in these cycles? 

Response: 

6.1.15 Does the proposed software solution support secondary accounts linked to a primary account? 

Response: 

6.1.16 Detail the search and inquiry functions of the proposed software solution. Specifically, outline how 
customers, accounts, and services can be located within the software. 

Response: 

6.2 Customer Relations:  The Customer Relations Department of the City of Thomasville assists 
customers who may have difficulty paying their bills or who require special exemptions, such as 
penalty exemptions, cutoff exemptions, or medical alerts. The current billing software features 
dedicated screens for these functions. In contrast, while the proposed solution does not need to 
replicate the exact workflow, it must achieve the same outcomes. 

6.2.1 Customers with delinquent accounts must be able to process all services or select individual services on 
their account. 

Response: 

 

6.2.2 When a customer becomes delinquent for the first time in a calendar year, the current system generates a 
notification order to ensure that a door card is delivered to the customer. Additionally, it grants the 
customer a three-day extension before the cutoff date. Will the proposed solution be able to achieve 
this? 

Response: 

 

6.2.3    The proposed software should be able to generate late fees for delinquent accounts. 

Response: 
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6.2.4 When a customer is delinquent, the system must be able to create either a Notify Order, as described 
above, or a Cutoff Order for a technician to disconnect services at the location.  

Response: 

 

6.2.5 When an account is marked as delinquent, can the proposed solution create an automatic note on the 
account identifying it as delinquent for historical purposes?  

Response: 

 

6.2.6 The City of Thomasville’s current billing platform uses a collections process for processing delinquent 
accounts. A process is typically run every day to identify delinquent customers. There are days that the 
City does not run the process; therefore, the process will need the ability to process multiple days on the 
next run. How does the proposed solution identify delinquent accounts? Is a manual report run, or does 
the software have a built-in process that flags the delinquent account? If a manual report needs to be run, 
does the software allow multiple days to be run in a single report, or does each day require its own 
report to be run? 

Response: 

6.2.7 As a part of the delinquent process, when an account has not been paid in full by the due date, the City 
of Thomasville’s current billing software will create a “Friendly Reminder Letter” once every year and 
it will also place a hold on the account, giving the customer additional time to pay.  Letter formatting 
and content editing are available within the current software. Does the proposed software solution have 
the capability of creating and modifying letter(s) within the system? Does the proposed software 
solution have the capability of automatically printing a letter based on criteria specified by the City of 
Thomasville and placing a hold on the account? 

Response: 

 

6.2.8 When an account becomes delinquent, does the proposed software package allow for cutting off 
individual services or all services on the account? 

Response: 

 

6.2.9 The software solution must be capable of managing holds and alternate due dates. 

Response: 
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6.2.10 When a deposit is required for service, whether for a new or existing account, the proposed software 
solution must be capable of creating a cutoff work order if the deposit is not paid by the due date. 

Response: 

6.2.11 In certain situations, the City of Thomasville permits customers to establish contract payments for 
accounts with balances that cannot be settled in full at once. Does the proposed software support 
contract payments? 

Response: 

6.2.12 When adding a contract payment to an account, the proposed software should allow for one, multiple, or 
all services to be included in the contract. It should also enable the user to place either the full bill or a 
specific amount of the bill for each service on the contract. 

Response: 

6.2.13 If an account has more than two returned checks each year, it must be designated as a "cash only" 
account, meaning that cash is the only accepted payment method. 

Response: 

6.2.14 The software must support multiple hold types: one-time without charge, one-time with charge, and 
fixed hold (also known as alternate due date). 

Response: 

6.2.15 A record of bad debt must be maintained for several years, as determined by the City of Thomasville at 
the time of installation. 

Response: 

6.2.16 A report must be available listing all customers with bad debt. 

Response: 
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6.2.17  If a final billed customer has not paid their account balance in full within 90 days, the current billing 
software used by the City of Thomasville flags the customer’s Social Security Number (SSN) as 
indicative of bad debt. As a result, the customer will not be able to open a new account until the 
outstanding debt is paid or until they agree to transfer the bad debt to the new account under a 
contractual agreement. Does the proposed software solution meet these requirements? 

Response: 

6.2.18 Access to customer contact information must be easy and flexible to edit. The City of Thomasville's 
current software includes fields for primary and secondary account contact information, specifically for 
email, telephone, and alternate phone numbers. Does the proposed software solution allow for the 
addition of multiple fields for primary and secondary account contacts? If so, please specify the 
available contact information fields. 

Response: 

6.2.19 The City of Thomasville utilizes Milsoft Utility Solutions’ Outage Management System (OMS) for 
handling customer calls about power outages. Does the proposed software system support integration 
with Milsoft’s IVR/OMS solution for outage notifications? 

Response: 

6.2.20 The City of Thomasville utilizes TextPower's texting gateway solution to send and receive messages to 
customers about delinquent accounts and service outages. Does the proposed software solution support 
integration with TextPower's SMS gateway for notifications regarding delinquencies and outages? 

Response: 

6.2.21 The City of Thomasville’s current billing platform can send email notifications to customers about 
delinquent accounts. Does the proposed software solution enable automatic email notifications for 
delinquent accounts to customers? 

Response: 

6.2.22 The software solution must allow customers to choose either a paper or electronic bill. 

Response: 
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6.2.23  The City of Thomasville permits accounts to be designated with a medical alert status. This designation 
must be renewed each year and requires customer notification before services are disconnected due to 
nonpayment. Upon renewal, a letter is automatically generated for the customer. Does the proposed 
software solution allow accounts to be marked as Medical Alert (or a similar designation) to prevent 
electric service cutoffs without prior notification? Additionally, can the proposed software store the 
renewal letter and link it to the account for easy access? Finally, does the proposed software have the 
capability to flag the account as the letter renewal date approaches? 

Response: 

6.2.24  In certain situations, a customer may receive a special exemption, such as a cut-out exemption, tax 
exemption, or late-fee exemption. The proposed software must have the functionality to designate 
accounts or services as exempt for various reasons. 

Response: 

 
6.3 Cashiering:  The Cashiering Department of the City of Thomasville handles payment processing 

for all services. Customers can choose to pay through various methods, including online, via a 
mobile application, over the phone using IVR (Interactive Voice Response), in person at the office, 
or by using the after-hours drop box. In our drive-thru, we accept payments in cash, personal 
checks, business checks, money orders, and credit cards such as Visa, Mastercard, and Discover. 

6.3.1 The City of Thomasville accepts Energy Assistance payments for customer accounts. These payments 
may come from either government or private organizations. When assistance is received, it is received in 
the form of a single check covering multiple customers and accounts or a check that applies to just one 
account. The proposed software solution should be capable of accepting Energy Assistance payments 
and must allow these payments to be allocated to one or multiple specific services, as needed. 

Response: 

6.3.2 When Energy Assistance is applied to an account, either directly or through a promise to pay, does the 
proposed software have the capability to automatically create a note on the account? 

Response: 

6.3.3 In some instances, Energy Assistance is promised to a customer, but the payment may not arrive before 
the bill’s due date. In such cases, the City of Thomasville requires a “promise to pay” feature so that the 
customer’s account is not terminated after the due date, but before the Energy Assistance payment is 
received. Does the proposed software solution allow for the entry of Energy Assistance “Promise to 
Pay” payments and provide a notation on the account to prevent disconnection? 



Page 15 of 47 

 

Response: 

6.3.4 The City of Thomasville accepts payments in cash, personal checks, business checks, money orders, and 
credit cards, including Visa, Mastercard, and Discover. Does the proposed solution have the capability 
to accept all these payment methods? 

Response: 

6.3.5 The City of Thomasville will continue using Invoice Cloud for credit card processing. Does the 
proposed software solution support Invoice Cloud as the processor? 

 Response: 

6.3.6 Does the proposed software solution support the automatic processing of bank drafts and credit card  
transactions? 

Response: 

6.3.7 If a customer has multiple accounts with the City of Thomasville, does the proposed software solution 
allow payments for all accounts to be made at once, or can only one account be paid at a time? 

Response: 

6.3.8 Does the proposed software solution provide a web service or API for integration with third-party mobile or web 
applications? If so, is there a specific method or call that needs to be used? 

Response: 

6.3.9 Does the proposed software solution include a mobile app for payments and billing history? 

Response: 
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6.3.10 Does the proposed software solution include an integrated web portal for payments and billing usage 
history? 

Response: 

6.3.11 The City of Thomasville has a limit on credit card payments each month. Does the proposed software 
allow for setting this limit? 

Response: 

6.3.12 The proposed software solution must incorporate credit balances on customer accounts and apply them 
accordingly in the next billing cycle. 

Response: 

6.3.13 The software solution must indicate how payment was received, such as via Dropbox, mobile app, web 
portal, in-person, or IVR. 

Response: 

6.3.14 As mentioned earlier, accounts may be designated as “cash only.” Is it possible for any account to be 
marked as accepting only cash payments? Will a notification be displayed on the screen to inform the 
cashier that the account is cash only? Additionally, will the proposed software update be integrated with 
the IVR, mobile app, or web portal to prevent customers from making payments through those 
channels? 

Response: 

6.3.15 Does the proposed software solution have the ability to print a receipt when a customer pays in person? 

Response: 

6.3.16 The proposed software solution must print daily reconciliation reports for cashiers. 

Response: 
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6.4 Customer Care:  The Customer Care department is responsible for setting up new accounts, 
transferring existing accounts to new locations, and making general account changes. Additionally, 
Customer Care serves as the front-line call center for the City of Thomasville. In this role, staff 
members handle calls related to all services offered by the City and troubleshooting or routing 
inquiries as needed. 

6.4.1 Does the proposed software solution allow for marking available services at a location and identifying 
whether that location falls within city limits? If so, please provide a detailed explanation of how this is 
achieved. 

Response: 

6.4.2 When an issue occurs with an account, a work order is created in the current billing system. This work 
order can be printed on a physical printer and/or sent via email. Does the proposed software solution 
support the generation and management work orders? If so, can the software print work orders to one or 
multiple printers, and send electronic copies via email? 

Response: 

6.4.3 In the current billing system, all customer locations are verified using a USPS-based address verification 
tool. Does the proposed software solution include an integrated USPS-based address verification tool 
that can verify all locations as recognized by USPS? If it does, is this tool built into the software, or is it 
a separate application? 

Response: 

6.4.4 Does the proposed software solution allow the transfer of unpaid charges and deposits when a customer 
changes locations? 

Response: 

6.4.5 Does the proposed software solution keep a detailed record of service and payment history? If so, how 
long is this information retained? 

Response: 

 
6.5 Billing:  The Billing Department is responsible for all functions related to billing within the 

organization. This includes tasks such as reading meters, making adjustments, and managing 
monthly book and cycle processing. The City of Thomasville utilizes AMR (Automated Meter 
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Reading) meters for electric, water, and gas services. Accounts lacking AMR meters require the 
billing department to dispatch personnel for manual readings. 

6.5.1 As previously stated, most utility accounts in the City of Thomasville utilize AMR meters for automated readings. 
Parsons is the vendor responsible for aggregating the readings from all AMR meters. Does the proposed software 
solution have the capability to extract meter readings from Parsons? If so, how is this integration achieved? 

Response: 

6.5.2 For manually read meters, the City of Thomasville utilizes Northrop Grumman’s RouteManager for 
meter readings. Does the proposed software solution have the capability to extract meter readings from 
RouteManager? If so, what is the process for this integration? 

Response: 

6.5.3 Does the proposed software solution support Budget Billing? The City of Thomasville currently 
calculates the monthly charge for the next eleven (11) months by averaging the previous twelve (12) 
months’ usage. The process should include automated midterm letters. The solutions must also provide a 
reconciliation process at the end of the customer’s term. If it does not support this feature, how does the 
software determine the monthly Budget Billing amount? 

Response: 

6.5.4    Does the proposed software solution support Levelized Billing? Levelized Billing calculates the monthly 
payment by averaging the current month's usage with that of the previous 12 months. This payment may 
vary slightly as the system continuously updates each new month’s data, but there is no specific 
reconciliation month where all adjustments are made at once. The process operates in this cycle until the 
customer chooses to opt out of the program. This approach helps to distribute seasonal peaks and valleys 
in usage more evenly throughout the year. 

Response: 

 

6.5.5 When an account is opened, closed, or transferred during a billing period, it may be necessary to pro-rate 
the services. Does the software have the capability to pro-rate accounts based on the duration of service 
during the billing cycle? 

Response: 
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6.5.6 The City of Thomasville currently utilizes MuniCode Corporation for bill printing. After each billing 
cycle, a file is sent to MuniCode, which handles the printing and mailing of the statements. Can the 
proposed software solution generate a billing file that meets MuniCode's specifications for formatting, 
printing, and mailing the bills as required? If it cannot, please provide an alternate solution. 

Response: 

6.5.7 To better serve customers, the City of Thomasville offers “On-Bill Financing” for energy-related 
upgrades that meet specific criteria. Does the proposed software solution support installment payments 
for qualifying residential upgrades? 

Response: 

6.5.8 Does the proposed software solution permit manual account adjustments by applying transactions 
immediately to the account or billing them on the next statement? 

Response: 

6.6  Security:  Security is a critical concern for the City of Thomasville. The Proposer's utility billing 
software solution must possess suitable architecture, design, and processes to securely manage the 
City's information. The City of Thomasville uses Active Directory for its enterprise user 
authentication, role-based access control, and authorization. 

6.6.1 To protect customers from unauthorized account changes, the City of Thomasville assigns each account 
a unique PIN. Does the proposed software support this? If not, please explain how you safeguard 
customer accounts. 

Response: 

6.6.2 Customer data security is a top priority. Does the proposed software solution have the capability to 
obscure or encrypt sensitive customer information fields, such as Social Security Numbers and bank or 
credit card details? 

Response: 
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6.6.3 Access Control: The proposed software solution must include access control features. Proposers should 
describe methods for implementing user and role-based access, as well as how they will detect and alert 
on failed access attempts. 

Response: 

 

6.6.4 Authentication: Describe the use of Active Directory for the proposed billing software solution, focusing 
on role and user-based authentication services. Include methods and mechanisms to detect and alert for 
failed authentication attempts. 

Response: 

 

6.6.5 Confidentiality: Describe solution methods, processes, or other components available to support solution 
confidentiality relative to the users and solution resources being used. Include approaches and 
mechanisms to detect and alert confidentiality compromise attempts. 

Response: 

 

6.6.6 Audit: Please describe methods, processes, and components available for conducting audit functions 
related to solution users and resources. This includes, but is not limited to, system logs, database logs, 
transaction logs, and process logs. Additionally, outline the approaches and mechanisms for detecting 
and alerting failed auditing compromise attempts. 

Response: 

 

6.6.7 Outline the security roadmap for the utility billing solution, detailing investment rationale, key 
objectives, relevant metrics, and priorities about market and regulatory drivers, threat assessments, and 
testing protocols. 

Response: 

 

6.6.8 Integrating a Security Development Lifecycle within the overall Development Lifecycle is crucial. This 
involves methodologies, tools, best practices, and quality gates to ensure security throughout the 
development process. 

Response: 
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6.6.9 Describe the types of security testing/certification, both executed by the Proposer and executed via a 3rd 
party, that have been performed on the utility billing Software. List any 3rd party certifications achieved. 
Include any test reports, vulnerabilities found, remediation conducted, and evidence of re-testing. 

Response: 

6.6.10 Multifactor Authentication. The utility billing software solution must support multifactor authentication.  
Describe solution methods, processes, or other components available to support multifactor 
authentication frameworks. This may include additional proprietary authentication mechanisms. 

Response: 

 

6.6.11 Describe approaches and mechanisms for Malware protection within the solution, including but not 
limited to anti-virus or other anti-malware components.  Describe approaches and mechanisms to detect 
and alert failed Malware protection compromise attempts.  

Response: 

 

6.6.12 The utility billing software solution must incorporate administrative security measures. Describe the 
strategies and mechanisms for managing security within the system, including methods to detect and 
alert attempts to compromise security administration. 

Response: 

6.6.13 If selected, the City of Thomasville may conduct a third-party security review or penetration test of the 
Proposer's solution before production implementation. Any identified security issues must be resolved 
by the Proposer at their expense before implementation. Proposers must acknowledge their 
understanding and agreement with this requirement. 

Response: 

 

 
6.7  Reporting:  To effectively utilize the utility billing software, the City of Thomasville requires strong 

reporting capabilities. The Proposer should detail the software’s reporting features, highlighting 
out-of-the-box options, user-configurable settings, and any additional reporting packages. The City 
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prefers Crystal Reports, which should allow for report generation at any time. The Proposer must 
also provide a list of standard reports included with the software solution. 

6.7.1 Proposer's solution will enable authorized users to generate ad-hoc reports. Please identify its 
compatibility with third-party reporting tools such as Crystal Reports and SQL Reports, in detail. 

Response: 

 

6.7.2 The proposed solution must provide selected reports in digital formats such as PDF, Excel, etc. (Please 
describe it in detail.) 

Response: 

 

6.7.3 The solution proposed must allow for scheduling selected reports to be posted in a designated directory 
or on a website. 

Response: 

 

6.7.4 The proposed solution must allow for configuring the structure and format of reports in detail. 

Response: 

 

6.7.5 In the current billing solution, manual queries are executed against the backend database and then 
formatted using Microsoft Excel. Does the proposed software solution have the capability to run SQL 
queries directly against the backend database? If it does not, are there other methods available that offer 
similar functionality? 

Response: 

 
6.8 Maintenance:  Routine maintenance of the utility billing software solution includes regular updates, 

performance checks, and bug fixes. This maintenance may require the application to be offline 
during certain periods. Maintenance should be conducted monthly and may take several hours, 
depending on the scope of work necessary. 

 
6.8.1 Outline the process for certifying the utility billing software application when applying patches or 

updates to the operating system and third-party software. 

Response: 
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6.8.2 Please describe the process for implementing planned and unplanned patches or upgrades to the utility 
billing software and the host operating systems. Specifically, indicate whether these tasks require the 
application to be offline and for what duration. Additionally, clarify how the patch or upgrade can be 
rolled back either during or after the update process is completed. 

Response: 

 

6.8.3 All software and related release documentation must be provided electronically. This documentation 
includes release notes, application notes, configuration information, and installation details. The 
Proposer must explain how it will comply with this requirement. 

Response: 
 

7.0 Utility Billing Software Project Implementation Services 

7.1   Utility Billing Deployment Project Management:  The City of Thomasville is requesting baseline 
service models and pricing for the implementation of project services described below. The City of 
Thomasville requires a fixed price bid (Not to Exceed) for all services. The City of Thomasville 
understands that this will depend on the full scope of contracted work. 

7.1.1 Provide a comprehensive project plan and approach, which includes the project schedule, resource 
requirements, task interdependencies, deliverables and their contents, major milestones, and 
checkpoints. 

Response: 

 

7.1.2 Summarize the project team proposed by the Proposer. Represent the project team members in an 
organizational chart and outline each member's roles and responsibilities. 

Response: 

 

7.1.3 Please provide the City of Thomasville with an estimate of the operational support resources needed to 
implement and manage the proposed utility billing software solution. The proposer should clearly 
outline the necessary tasks, as well as the number and skill level of resources required. 

Response: 
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7.1.4 The proposer must support the City of Thomasville in creating and maintaining the comprehensive 
project plan, which includes the project schedule, resource requirements, task interdependencies, major 
milestones, and checkpoints. 

Response: 

 

7.1.5 The proposer must conduct an initial project risk assessment and develop a mitigation strategy with 
input from the City of Thomasville. Proposers are required to provide updates and assist the City of 
Thomasville in managing risks and dependencies throughout the project lifecycle. 

Response: 

 

7.1.6 The proposer is required to provide the City of Thomasville with updates on project issues, action items, 
and resolutions to ensure that the issue/action item log remains current. Additionally, the proposer must 
attend the regularly scheduled project status meetings as specified by the project team. Attendance at 
these meetings can be done remotely via conference calls. 

Response: 

 

7.1.7 Outline the standard internal QA process for handling major and minor releases, patches, and other 
updates before delivering the code to the City of Thomasville. 

Response: 

 

7.1.8 Outline the standard change management process for utility billing software in support of 
communications, transmittals, installation, and validation of major and minor releases for the City of 
Thomasville. 

Response: 

 

7.1.9 Identify System Integration companies experienced in providing integration services for the proposer’s 
utility billing solution. Provide an overview of their experience scope, including product installation, 
configuration, maintenance support, and more. 

Response: 
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7.2 Documentation List 

7.2.1 Provide a comprehensive list of all system documentation to be made available, including a Table of 
Contents and an Index for each document. This includes solution architecture documents, operations 
manuals, administration manuals, training manuals, integration, and more. 

Response: 

 

7.3 Training 

7.3.1 The proposer must submit an example training plan outlining how they envision delivering training 
services to the City of Thomasville, such as through webinars or on-site sessions. The City of 
Thomasville intends to provide a dedicated configuration team, which will consist of representatives 
from each supporting organization. This team will be responsible for the initial installation, 
configuration, and testing of the system, as well as delivering training to other members within the 
organization. 

Response: 

7.4 Technical Support 

7.4.1 Please provide a description of the technical support levels available, including response times, phone 
support, email support, on-site support, and 24/7 availability. Additionally, detail the number and type of 
personnel currently available or those who will be available to provide these support services. Include 
information regarding the implementation and initial configuration support available both on-site and 
off-site. Lastly, provide a calendar listing the holiday dates typically observed by support personnel. 

Response: 

 

7.5  Requirements Specifications 

7.5.1 The proposer is required to develop and document the system configuration, and customization needs to 
meet the business requirements of the City of Thomasville. This task encompasses both the mandatory 
and optional functions outlined in this RFP. Additionally, the proposer must supply the standard product 
configuration tools and relevant documentation to assist in this process. 

Response: 

 

7.5.2 The proposer must clearly define and document the requirements for converting essential data from 
existing data stores to the new utility billing solution. 

Response: 
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7.5.3 The proposer must consult with the City of Thomasville to develop and document the overall system 
integration requirements, including data transformation needs, frequency or invocation mechanisms, 
latency requirements, exception handling criteria, and more. 

Response: 

 

7.5.4 The proposer must supply standard system administration and database management manuals and offer 
consultation services to the City of Thomasville. This consultation will assist in developing the specific 
requirements for the City’s utility billing software administration and support. This includes aspects 
such as user account management, security management, database management, backup and restore 
procedures, and system performance management. 

Response: 

 

7.6 Hardware and Infrastructure 

7.6.1 The proposer must specify the computer hardware, operating systems, LAN/WAN configurations, and 
other infrastructure requirements necessary to support the technical and performance needs of the utility 
billing software solution, with input from the City of Thomasville. The specifications should encompass 
environments for development, testing, production, and disaster recovery. This includes details on 
database and application servers, user workstations, LAN/WAN requirements, and more. 

Response: 

 

7.6.2 The proposer must offer on-site support, guidance, and "train-the-trainer" training during the initial 
installation and configuration of the utility billing software. Proposers are responsible for leading 
validation and tuning efforts to ensure the proper configuration of the hardware. 

Response: 

 

7.7 Testing 

7.7.1 The proposer must assist with the system's integration, performance, availability, user acceptance, and 
final site acceptance tests. It is important to note that unit testing is considered a part of the development 
process and is, therefore, the responsibility of the product suppliers or developers. 

Response: 

 

7.7.2 The proposer must submit their standard test plan, which will be customized to address the specific 
needs of the City of Thomasville. At a minimum, the test plan should include the following types of 
tests: system tests, integration tests, performance tests, stress tests, availability tests, security tests, and 
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final end-to-end process acceptance tests. Additionally, for each test, the plan must outline the required 
hardware and software, the test data, the necessary resources, and the acceptance criteria. 

Response: 

 

7.7.3 The proposer is responsible for developing integrated test procedures based on the standard test 
procedures they provide. This includes all tests specified in the test plan, along with the expected results 
for each test. At a minimum, the test procedures must encompass functional tests, integration tests, 
business process operational tests, performance tests, availability tests, scalability and stress tests, as 
well as security tests. 

Response: 

 

7.7.4 The City of Thomasville will supply the necessary data for testing. If this test data is not readily 
available, the proposer must provide a sample of standard test data. 

Response: 

7.7.5 The proposer must provide on-site assistance during the final system acceptance testing to ensure the 
system is ready to support end-to-end business processes. 

Response: 

 

7.8 Configuration/Version Management 

7.8.1 With input and participation from the proposer, the City of Thomasville will devise and document the 
plan and processes for maintaining the configurations and versions of hardware, software, and 
documents received over the project development and deployment lifecycle. Hardware configurations 
must include application servers, database servers, user workstations, as well as networking 
infrastructures. Software version and configuration management must include periodic software patches, 
new releases, and upgrades of individual system components of the utility billing software, including 
server and client applications from their respective suppliers. Documents must include updated system 
manuals, user manuals, training manuals, database schema and dictionaries, test plans and test 
procedures, etc. 

Response: 
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7.8.2 The proposer is required to provide updates to the documents throughout the project lifecycle, which 
includes the phases of requirements gathering, design, system implementation, and final production. The 
City of Thomasville will ensure that all documentation related to the utility billing software is updated 
and maintained by the established plan and process. 

Response: 

 

7.9 Production Transition and Rollout 

7.9.1 The proposer must include a detailed production cutover and rollout plan to effectively guide all stages 
of the implementation process, including production, conversion, business transition, and rollout. 

Response: 

 

7.10 Maintenance and Support 

7.10.1 The proposer must provide a detailed description of the warranty and support for the supplied products, 
custom developments, and system interfaces, including specific support terms. Both software and 
documentation must be covered under the warranty and support services. 

Response: 

 

7.10.2 The proposer must provide regular software updates and support under a five-year software maintenance 
agreement. 

Response: 

 

7.10.3 Outline the necessary approach and resources for implementing the proposed software solution. Include 
a detailed implementation schedule with key activities and estimated milestones. 

Response: 

7.10.4 Describe your company’s service & support philosophy, how it is carried out, and how success is 
measured. 

Response: 
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7.10.5 The proposer must offer ongoing services and support, including a toll-free customer service number 
available 24/7, annual training classes, an online customer service portal, and online software 
maintenance. If support is provided by a third party, please include a detailed description of the 
company, the number of support personnel, and the total number of current customers they assist in the 
state. 

Response: 

 

7.10.6 Please provide a sample of a proposed License Agreement. 

Response: 

 

8.0 Utility Billing Software Solution Development 

8.1  The City of Thomasville is interested in understanding the proposer’s ability to support and ensure the 
successful delivery of the utility billing software project. This includes enabling all necessary features 
while supporting the benefits and vision within the established schedule and budget. While the City of 
Thomasville will have specific expectations for how the selected utility billing software vendor will 
collaborate with its project team, the proposer is encouraged to use this section to outline their delivery 
capabilities, methods, and approaches. This will help Thomasville gain a clearer understanding of the 
proposer’s perspective. 

Response: 

 

8.2 Identify any specific requirements in this RFP that have not been implemented or may challenge the 
proposed utility billing software solution. Describe how these challenges will be addressed. 

 Response: 

8.3  The proposer must express its willingness and capability to provide comprehensive system integration 
that goes beyond the requirements outlined in this RFP. 

Response: 

 

8.4  Provide a detailed description of your vision for developing utility billing software, including your 
strategy, platform evolution, and solution roadmap. 

Response: 
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8.5  Please provide your most recent product roadmap, including timeline expectations and anticipated 
functional commercial availability for each subsequent release. Also, highlight any planned major 
evolutions of your current technology or architecture. 

Response: 

 

8.6  Describe how any future platform or technology evolution will be managed to ensure operational 
compatibility and interoperability within your current solution. 

Response: 

 

8.7  The City of Thomasville seeks to understand the release experiences of the proposer. The proposer 
should describe the actual major and minor release schedule from January 2024 to the present, along 
with a summary of the release notes. 

Response: 

 

8.8  Describe how the development lifecycle maintains compatibility with required 3rd party packages, 
including Win O/S, SQL, etc. The City of Thomasville requires backward compatibility of the utility 
billing software solution for not less than two (2) years. 

Response: 
 

9.0 Company and Financial Background 

9.1   Please provide the name and address of the vendor submitting the proposal with which the City of 
Thomasville will enter into a contractual agreement. Additionally, include the name and contact 
information for a single point of contact, which should consist of their phone number, email address, 
mailing address, and fax number. 

Response: 

 

9.2   Please provide a comprehensive list of all affiliates of the contracting entity. This should include 
subsidiaries, parent companies, and any other subsidiaries of the parent companies. A company is 
considered a parent if it directly owns or controls, through intermediate entities, at least ten percent 
(10%) of the stock or analogous voting interests of another company. Conversely, a company is 
classified as a subsidiary if it has one (1) or more parent companies. 

Response: 
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9.3   Provide a chart showing all ownership relationships from the parent company through its direct and 
indirect subsidiaries of the contracting entity. 

Response: 

 

9.4 The City of Thomasville seeks to partner with a utility billing software vendor that has ample experience 
in designing, delivering, and supporting utility billing implementations. A robust utility billing software 
solution is essential for facilitating various initiatives and providing benefits to both the City of 
Thomasville and its customers. Please use this section to share detailed information about your 
experiences, capabilities, and vision regarding utility billing solutions. 

Response: 

9.5   Please create a list of alliances and formal partnerships that enhance your product or service offerings. 
Be sure to include all relevant aspects of the City of Thomasville’s utility billing software technologies, 
IT platforms, system integration, support services, industry standards-setting organizations, and total 
program management or prime contractors. 

Response: 

 

9.6   Please provide a list of your utility billing production solution deployments for utility companies in 
North America. If possible, include at least five (5) references from a municipality of similar size and 
scope. The references should include the following information: utility name, number of endpoints by 
commodity, services offered, rate structures supported, outage management system (OMS), geographic 
information system (GIS), interactive voice response (IVR), system installation date and version 
implemented, and provisioning software in use. 

Response: 

 

9.7   Please provide at least five (5) verifiable references from the list of all deployments. These references 
should relate to utility services or be comparable in scope to the City of Thomasville. The City of 
Thomasville intends to reach out to these references and reserves the right to request additional contacts 
if necessary. 

Response: 
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9.8   Is your firm currently taking legal action against another entity concerning your utility billing software 
solution? Alternatively, is your firm defending itself against legal action related to this software? If 
applicable, please provide details about either situation. 

Response: 

 

9.9  The proposer must include their Tax Identification Number (TIN). 

Response: 

 

9.10  Provide copies of the audited annual financial statements for the two (2) most recently completed fiscal 
years. 

Response: 

 

9.11  Detail all significant investments made in the past two (2) years related to asset acquisition, capital 
infrastructure upgrades, and other relevant areas pertinent to this RFP. 

Response: 

 

9.12 Provide a comprehensive list of all relevant assets and their dollar values as they pertain to the scope of 
this RFP. 

Response: 

 

9.13  Provide the latest financial ratings from Moody's, S&P, or Dun & Bradstreet, and identify any rating 
changes that have occurred in the past two (2) years. 

Response: 

 

9.14 Please describe your involvement in any sales, mergers, or acquisition activities. 

Response: 
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9.15   Please specify whether the proposed utility billing software vendor has ever filed for bankruptcy. 

Response: 

9.16  Please create a timeline that outlines the company’s growth, history, staff size, and ownership structure. 

Response: 

9.17 What percentage of revenues does the proposed solution generate compared to other products or services 
offered by the company? 

Response: 

9.18  Describe how customer satisfaction is measured for software applications, project implementation, and 
customer service and support. 

Response: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Page 34 of 47 

 

10.0 Proposal Evaluation and Selection Process 

This section defines the proposal format to be used by respondents. All proposals shall be submitted in the format 
outlined herein. In preparing submissions, respondents shall describe in detail the services proposed to be 
provided and how service delivery will be accomplished. Respondents should also identify equipment 
requirements and the cost of providing design for each category identified. The minimum levels of services to be 
provided are described in this RFP.  
 
An Evaluation Committee will review all submissions to determine which Proposers have qualified for 
consideration. The proposals will be publicly opened, and the vendor announced in the Purchasing Department 
at the appointed time. The proposals will be considered by the City Council at a regularly scheduled City Council 
meeting within forty-five to sixty (45-60) days of the proposal’s opening. 
 
The primary criteria for vendor evaluation, consideration, and scoring weights are:  
 

CRITERIA WEIGHT POINT VALUE/RATING 
Market Focus 10% 0-3 
Stability (Financial Viability, Business 
Longevity, National Focus) 10% 0-3 

Customer Service (References, Retention, 
Measure Service Rates, 24/7 Support) 10% 0-3 

Ability to Provide a Comprehensive 
Integrated Solution to meet stated 
requirements 

50% 0-3 

Cost – to include Support and Maintenance 
Fees 20% 0-3 

TOTAL 100 percent 18 points 
 
The City of Thomasville will receive competitive proposals from firms having specific experience and 
qualifications in the areas identified in this solicitation. Under competitive negotiation procedures, the terms of 
the service contract, the price of the services, the method of service delivery, and the conditions of performance 
are all negotiable.  A negotiated contract will be awarded to the agency that best meets the proposed needs at a 
reasonable price, not necessarily at the lowest price.  
 
For consideration, the proposals must contain descriptions of the agency’s experience and abilities to perform 
according to the City of Thomasville requirements. Unless otherwise stated, all proposals shall address each 
criterion identified in this RFP.  
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11.0 Additional Requirements  
 
INSURANCE 

a. The firm shall, at its own expense, provide and maintain during the term of this contract, the 
minimum amounts of insurance specified below. The insurer shall be in good standing within the 
state of Georgia through the Insurance Commissioner’s Office and must be rated “A” or better, 
with AM Best Company. 

b. Before commencing work under the contract, the firm shall provide to City of Thomasville, Attn: 
Purchasing Administrator, a Certificate of Insurance, evidencing the required kinds and amounts of 
insurance. The minimum kinds and amounts of insurance shall be: 

i. Workers’ Compensation – Contractors are required to comply with applicable Federal 
and Georgia State workers’ compensation statutes. Policies covering Workers’ 
Compensation liability shall provide coverage of statutory benefits and employers 
liability of at least $1,000,000 for each incident. 

ii. General Liability – $2,000,000 aggregate; $1,000,000 per occurrence 
iii. Professional Liability – $2,000,000 per occurrence/aggregate 
iv. Vehicle Liability – Vehicle liability insurance shall be written on the comprehensive 

policy – Combined single limit of at least $1,000,000 to include hired vehicles and non-
owned vehicle. The policy shall provide for bodily injury and property damage liability 
covering the operation of all automobiles used in connection with performing the 
contract. 

c. The Certificate of Insurance shall contain an endorsement stating that any coverage change or 
cancellation shall not be effective until 60 days after the insurer or firm gives written notice to the 
City’s Purchasing Administrator. 

d. The firm’s general liability insurance policy shall list as an additional insured: 
i. City of Thomasville, Georgia 

 
 
12.0 Billing for Services Provided  
 
A purchase order number will be awarded upon contract approval.  Payment for the work performed shall be 
made upon receipt of an approved invoice. The invoice shall detail services rendered and include the purchase 
order number. All original invoices shall be e-mailed to AP@thomasville.org or mailed to City of Thomasville 
Accounts Payable, P.O. Box 1540, Thomasville, Georgia 31799.  
 
Failure to comply with this provision may result in delayed payments for services rendered. 
 

a. A proper invoice shall include the items listed below: 
i. Name and address of the vendor 
ii. Invoice date and invoice number. (The vendor should date invoices as close as possible to 

the date of the mailing or transmission.) 
iii. Purchase order number issued for the contract. 
iv. Description, quantity, unit of measure, unit price, and extended price of services 

performed. 
v. Payment terms (e.g., discount for prompt payment terms). 
vi. Name and address to whom payment is to be sent. 
vii. Name (where practicable), title, phone number, and  mailing address of the person to 

notify in the event of a defective invoice. 
viii. Any other information or documentation required by the contract. 

 

mailto:AP@thomasville.org


Page 36 of 47 

 

13.0 Calendar of Events 
 

Request for Proposals (RFP) Distributed Monday, June 9, 2025 
Deadline for Requesting RFP Clarification Wednesday, June 18, 2025 @ 5:00 pm  
Responses to Requests for RFP Clarification Friday, June 27, 2025 @ 5:00 pm 
Vendors Response to RFP Due by 10:00am Wednesday, July 16, 2025 @ 10:00am  
Product Demonstrations, References and Site Visits Monday, July 21 – Friday, July 25, 2025 
Contract Negotiations & Clarifications   Monday, July 28 – Friday, August 1, 2025 
Approval and Award of Contract 3rd Quarter – 2025 
Planning and Implementation Begins JANUARY 2026 

 
14.0 Terms and Conditions 
 

14.1    One (1) signed original, three (3) paper copies of the Proposal WITHOUT pricing, one (1) USB 
Flash drive with a copy of the Proposal WITHOUT Pricing and one (1) separately sealed paper copy 
of the Proposal Project’s pricing/cost must be enclosed in a sealed plain envelope with RFP #2025-
007 Utility Billing Software written on the outside and must be filed with the Purchasing 
Administrator of the City of Thomasville, located at 111 Victoria Place, Thomasville, Georgia 
31792. In the event you choose to mail your proposal, it should be mailed to Purchasing 
Administrator, Lori McCardle, P.O. Box 1540, Thomasville, Georgia 31799.  Proposals submitted 
must be binding for no less than ninety (90) days after the date received. 

 
14.2    No proposer will be allowed to withdraw his proposal for any reason whatsoever after the RFPs 

have been opened. 
 
14.3    The specifications and scope of work following represent the minimum general size, weight, 

capacity, and performance characteristics desired in the equipment or services to be purchased. These 
requirements are not intended to prevent obtaining fair prices or to eliminate competition, but to 
ensure, if possible, that all proposals submitted shall not be subject to correction or alteration after 
the RFP has been filed, opened, and publicly read. In view of an unusual wide disparity in details of 
design and manufacture, complete descriptive literature and manufacturer specifications must be 
submitted on each type of equipment offered. The City of Thomasville reserves the right to evaluate 
any or all RFP’s, particularly where there is a range in specifications. Special consideration will be 
given to the ready availability of repair parts and service. 

 
14.4    Federal or State taxes are not applicable to Georgia Municipalities under the United States Code 

Title 26 and Georgia Exemption Certificate Number 3-465-686-300-1. 
 
14.5    It is expressly understood by the proposer that written notice of the award or purchase order from 

the Purchasing Office of the City of Thomasville will constitute an agreement and consummate the 
transaction and will serve together with the proposal, the advertisement, these instructions and the 
detailed specifications, as the entire form of contract between the parties. 

 
14.6    The proposer agrees that the City of Thomasville reserves the right to reject any or all proposals 

or to accept the part of the RFP considered or to resolicit proposers if no proposal is accepted, being 
in the best interest of the City. 
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14.7    Specifications and the scope of work referred to are minimal. Therefore, unless otherwise indicated 
by the proposer, the City will assume proposals meet or exceed all specifications. 

 
14.8    The names of a certain brand, make, or definite specifications are to denote quality standard of the 

article desired but do not restrict proposers to the specific brand, make, or manufacturer named.  It 
is to set forth and convey to prospective proposers the general style, type, character, and quality of 
the article desired. 

 
14.9    The City of Thomasville reserves the right to reject all RFPs as it appears in its own best interest 

and to waive technicalities. 
 
14.10 Award of Contract – The final award of the proposal or contract will be made by the City Council, 

which is the governing body of the City of Thomasville. The award will be granted to the vendor 
whose proposal meets the terms of the request for proposals and offers the greatest benefit to the 
City, taking into account all factors (criteria) outlined in this RFP. 

 
14.11 Contract – In addition to the completed proposal, a resulting contract may be required by the City 

of Thomasville, including but not limited to, written correspondence between the City of 
Thomasville and the vendor subsequent to the proposal submission, facsimiles, and product 
literature. 

 
14.12 Confidentiality of Documents – Proposals shall be opened to avoid disclosure of contents to 

competing offerors and kept secret during the process of negotiation.  However, all proposals that 
have been submitted shall be open for public inspection after contract award. Trade secrets and 
confidential information, as specified by the vendor, contained in the proposals shall not be open for 
public inspection. 

 
14.13 Contact with City of Thomasville Employees – In order to ensure fair and objective evaluation, all 

questions related to this RFP should be addressed only to the Purchasing Administrator (Lori 
McCardle). Contact with any other City of Thomasville employee, except at the vendor pre-bid 
meeting, (if conducted), is expressly prohibited without prior consent of the Purchasing 
Administrator. Vendors directly contacting other City of Thomasville employees will risk 
elimination of their proposal from further consideration. 

 
14.14 Non-Collusion Affidavit – By submitting a proposal, the vendor represents and warrants that such 

proposal is genuine and not sham or collusive or made in the interest or on behalf of any person not 
therein named and that the vendor has not directly or indirectly induced or solicited any other vendor 
to put in a sham proposal, or any other person, firm or corporation to refrain from proposing and that 
the vendor has not in any manner sought by collusion to secure to that vendor any advantage over 
any other vendor. 

 
14.15 By submitting a proposal, the vendor represents and warrants that no official or employee of the 

City of Thomasville has, in any manner, an interest, directly or indirectly in the proposal or in the 
contract which may be made under it, or in any expected profits to arise therefrom. 

 
14.16 Georgia Security and Immigration Compliance Act Affidavit – By submitting a proposal and 

executing the attached Affidavits, the vendor verifies its compliance with O.C.G.A. §13-10-91. The 
Vendor further agrees to maintain records of subcontractor compliance and shall provide compliance 
verification to the City at the time a subcontractor is retained to perform services. 

 
14.17 Cost Incurred by Vendors – All expenses involved with the preparation and submission of 

proposals to the City, or any work performed in connection therewith shall be borne by the vendor. 
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No payment will be made for any responses received or for any other effort required of or made by 
the firm prior to the commencement of work as defined by an approved contract. 

 
14.18 Equal opportunity policy statement – It is the policy of the City of Thomasville that no person or 

business shall be excluded from participation, denied the benefits of, or otherwise discriminated 
against in relation to the award and performance of any contract or subcontract on the grounds of 
race, color, creed, national origin, age, or sex. 

 
14.19 Hold Harmless and Indemnification – The vendor agrees, insofar as it legally may, to indemnify 

and hold harmless the City, its officers, employees and agents from and against all  loss, costs, 
expenses, including attorneys' fees, claims, suits and judgments, whatsoever in connection with 
injury to or death of any person or persons or loss of or damage to property resulting from any and 
all operations performed by vendor, its officers, employees, and agents under any of the terms of 
this contract. 

 
14.20 Multiple Awards – The City reserves the right to make multiple awards or to award a contract by 

individual line items or alternatives, by a group of line items or alternatives, or to make an aggregate 
award, whichever is deemed most advantageous to the City of Thomasville. If the City of 
Thomasville determines that an aggregate award to one vendor is not in the City’s best interest, "all 
or none" offers shall be rejected. 

 
14.21 Qualification of Vendors – The City may undertake reasonable investigations as deemed proper 

and necessary to determine the ability of a vendor to perform the work specified in the RFP. The 
vendor shall furnish with the City all information requested. The City reserves the right to reject any 
proposal if the submitted evidence or investigation of the vendor fails to satisfy the City of the 
vendor’s qualification to perform the contract requirements. 

 
14.22 Firms physically located in the City of Thomasville shall have an active Occupation Tax 

Certificate (business license) or have an active Occupation Tax Certificate if located in another 
local Georgia jurisdiction. If the firm is not a Georgia corporation, the firm shall submit an active 
registration with the Georgia Secretary of State. If the firm holds a professional certification which 
is licensed by the state of Georgia or other US state, then proposer shall submit a copy of the active 
professional license. Any license submitted in response to this requirement shall remain active for 
the duration of the contract. 

 
14.23 Proposals will not be accepted from a firm in default on the payment of any taxes, license fees, or 

other monies due to the City. 
 
14.24 Alternate Proposals – Alternate proposals or proposals that deviate from the requirements of this 

solicitation will not be considered. Vendors shall not insert in their proposal any written statement 
which will have the effect of making any material changes or changes in the Scope of Services or in 
any contract between the parties covering the subject matter thereof. 

 
14.25 Open Records O.C.G.A. SECTION 50-18-72 (A) (34) – An entity submitting records containing 

trade secrets that wish to keep such records confidential under this paragraph shall submit and 
attach to the records an affidavit affirmatively declaring that specific information in the records 
constitutes trade secrets pursuant to Georgia law under Article 27 of Chapter 1 of Title 10. If 
such an entity attaches such an affidavit, before producing such records in response to a request under 
this article, the agency shall notify the entity of its intention to produce such records as set forth in this 
paragraph. If the agency makes a determination that the specifically identified information does not, in 
fact, constitute a trade secret, it shall notify the entity by submitting the affidavit of its intent to disclose 
the information within ten (10) days unless prohibited from doing so by an appropriate court order. In 
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the event the entity wishes to prevent disclosure of the requested records, the entity may file an action 
in a superior court to obtain an order that the requested records are trade secrets exempt from 
disclosure. The entity filing such an action shall serve the requester with a copy of its court filing. If 
the agency makes a determination that the specifically identified information does constitute a trade 
secret, the agency shall withhold the records, and the requester may file an action in a superior court 
to obtain an order that the requested records are not traded secrets and are subject to disclosure. 

 
14.26 Each agency receiving a copy of this shall acknowledge receipt of any amendment to this RFP by 

signing and returning the amendment with the complete proposal. The acknowledgement must be 
received by the City of Thomasville at the time and place specified for receipt of proposals. 

 
14.27 The contract awarded shall be governed in all respect by the laws of the State of Georgia, and any 

litigation with respect thereto shall be brought in the courts of the State of Georgia, Thomas County 
Superior Court. The company awarded the contract shall comply with applicable Federal, State, and 
local laws and regulations.  

 
14.28 The City of Thomasville may materially change the objectives. Such changes may include 

additions, deletions, or other revisions within the general scope of RFP requirements. No changes or 
adjustments shall be made without a written amendment to this RFP, signed by the Purchasing 
Administrator.  

 
14.29 There is no expressed or implied obligation for the City to reimburse responding firms for any 

expenses incurred in preparing proposals in response to this request. Materials submitted by 
respondents are subject to public inspection under the Georgia Public Records Act (City Code Sec. 
6250 et seq.), unless exempt. Any language purporting to render the entire proposal confidential or 
proprietary will be ineffective and will be disregarded.  

 
14.30 Any proposal received at the place designated in this RFP after the time specified for receipt will 

not be accepted or considered.  
 
14.31 Any proposal that includes terms and conditions that do not conform to the terms and conditions 

in this RFP is subject to rejection as non-responsive. The City of Thomasville reserves the right to 
permit the respondent to withdraw non-conforming terms and conditions from its proposal prior to 
action by the City Council to award a contract.  

 
14.32 The City reserves the right to retain all proposals submitted and to use any ideas in any proposals 

submitted, regardless of whether or not that proposal is accepted. Submission of a proposal indicates 
acceptance by the person submitting the proposal of the terms, conditions and specifications 
contained in this RFP, unless clearly and specifically noted in the proposal submitted and confirmed 
in a subsequent contract between the City and the contractor selected. 
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15.0  Utility Billing Software Pricing  
 
The City of Thomasville is seeking fixed-price proposals to include core hardware costs, base license, per-user 
license, maintenance and support agreement, and implementation services. Currently, the City of Thomasville 
believes a concurrent user count of fifty (50) users is sufficient to cover our needs. Be sure to list the cost of 
adding users in the future on a per-user basis. Use the detailed costs list below to describe solution pricing as 
previously outlined in section 6, “Functional Requirements.”  List all assumptions, including available 
environments, 3rd party software license requirements, CPI adjustments, implementation services, etc. 

THE COST PROPOSAL SHOULD BE IN A SEPARATE ENVELOPE, SEALED AND DELIVERED TO 
THE CITY OF THOMASVILLE, ALONG WITH THE PROPROSAL. Amounts should contain no taxes 
and include all transportation and delivery, FOB, to the City of Thomasville, Georgia. All costs shall be in actual 
dollar-and-cent amounts. Please provide the best estimate for travel costs, and other miscellaneous items. The 
City of Thomasville reserves the right to procure by other means any personal computers needed.   
 
Detailed Costs should include the following: 

• Hardware Requirements 
• System implementation (Including License Fees) 
• API Creations/Integrations 
• Conversion of Historical Data 
• Travel 
• Training 
• Annual Support/Maintenance /Upgrades (Timeline of cost for the next five (5) years) 
• Hourly rates for: 

o Conversion Takes Not Outlined in RFP 
o Additional Training 
o Custom Modifications 
 

The City reserves the right to retain all proposals submitted and to use any ideas in any proposals 
submitted, regardless of whether that proposal is accepted. Submission of a proposal indicates acceptance 
by the person submitting the proposal of the terms, conditions, and specifications contained in this RFP 
unless clearly and specifically noted in the proposal submitted and confirmed in a subsequent contract 
between the City and the contractor selected. 
 
Evidence of Ability to Perform 
Before the award of any contract, each respondent may be required to demonstrate to their services to the 
designated committee that it has the necessary experience, ability, and resources to provide the services specified 
herein within the timeline required.  This may include site visits.  The City of Thomasville may make reasonable 
requests deemed necessary and proper to determine the scope of work, and the respondent shall furnish to the 
City of Thomasville all information for this purpose.  
 
Final Selection 
Following the review of the proposals, presentation, and interviews, the City may further invite a firm(s) to 
formally meet with City representatives/project team at the firm’s own expense before making a final 
determination to address additional inquiries by the City and to discuss and/or negotiate terms and conditions for 
a final contract.  Factors that will determine the final selection will include the finalization of terms regarding 
service agreements and costs. However, the City reserves the right to reject any or all quotations, waive any 
informality in RFPs, and accept or reject any items thereon. 
 
 
 



Page 41 of 47 

 

Contract Commencement and Completion 
 
The selected firm will be required to enter into a Sales Agreement for this project with the City of Thomasville.  
 
Any contract resulting from this RFP shall not be effective unless and until approved by the City Council or its 
designee. Upon approval, contract services shall commence within 30 days after the award of the contract. The 
estimated completion date shall be defined in the proposal submitted by the selected firm. 
 
Before the City executes a contract, the selected firm shall furnish the City a certificate evidencing Workmen’s 
Compensation Insurance with limits no less than $1,000,000 per accident or disease and Comprehensive Public 
Liability Insurance or General Liability Insurance with limits no less than $1,000,000 per occurrence.  The City 
shall be named as an additional insured with the following information listed on the Accord. Certificates of 
Insurance must be accompanied by the applicable endorsements for the specific insurance policy. 
 
I hereby certify that I have read all items of the RFP and fully understand the requirements listed herein. I further 
certify that I am an authorized agent of the Offering Firm and may be held liable for any or all remedies that may 
become due to the client of the City of Thomasville. 
 
 
SOFTWARE VENDOR: 
 
 
Firm Submitting Proposal 
 
 
Address City  State Zip Code 
 
 
HARDWARE VENDOR: 
 
 
Firm Submitting Proposal 
 
 
Address City  State Zip Code 
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16.0   Mandatory Proposal Forms   
 
Vendor must complete, execute and include with the proposal the following mandatory documents: 

A. Contractor Affidavit & Agreement Form 

B. Subcontractor Affidavit & Agreement Form 

C. Certificate of Non-Collusion 

D. Addenda Acknowledgment Form 
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Contractor Affidavit under O.C.G.A. § 13-10-91(b)(l) 
 

The undersigned contractor ("Contractor") executes this Affidavit to comply with O.C.G.A § 13-10-91 related to any contract 
to which Contractor is a party that is subject to O.C.G.A. § 13-10-91 and hereby verifies its compliance with O.C.G.A. § 13-
10-91, attesting as follows: 

a) The Contractor has registered with, is authorized to use and uses the federal work authorization program commonly 
known as E-Verify, or any subsequent replacement program; 

b) The Contractor will continue to use the federal work authorization program throughout the contract period, including 
any renewal or extension thereof; 

c) The Contractor will notify the public employer in the event the Contractor ceases to utilize the federal work 
authorization program during the contract period, including renewals or extensions thereof; 

d) The Contractor understands that ceasing to utilize the federal work authorization program constitutes a material 
breach of Contract; 

e) The Contractor will contract for the performance of services in satisfaction of such contract only with 
subcontractors who present an affidavit to the Contractor with the information required by O.C.G.A. § 13-10-91(a), 
(b), and (c); 

f) The Contractor acknowledges and agrees that this Affidavit shall be incorporated into any contract(s) subject to the 
provisions of O.C.G.A. § 13-10- 91 for the project listed below to which Contractor is a party after the date hereof 
without further action or consent by Contractor; and 

g) Contractor acknowledges its responsibility to submit copies of any affidavits, drivers' licenses, and identification 
cards required pursuant to O.C.G.A. § 13-10-91 to the public employer within five business days of receipt. 

 

 

Federal Work Authorization User Identification Number                    Date of Authorization 

 

Name of Contractor                                                                                    Name of Project 

 

Name of Public Employer 
 

I hereby declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct. 

Executed on  ,  , 20  in   (city),   (state). 

 

Signature of Authorized Officer or Agent 

Printed Name and Title of Authorized Officer or Agent 

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN BEFORE ME    ___________________________________ 
ON THIS THE   DAY OF  , 20 . NOTARY PUBLIC 
    My Commission Expires: ______________ 
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Subcontractor Affidavit under O.C.G.A. § 13-10-91(b)(3) 

By executing this affidavit, the undersigned subcontractor verifies its compliance with O.C.G.A. § 13-10-91, stating 
affirmatively that the individual, firm or corporation which is engaged in the physical performance of services under a contract 
with ________________________ on behalf of CITY OF THOMASVILLE, GA has registered with, is authorized to use and 
uses the federal work authorization program commonly known as E-Verify, or any subsequent replacement program, in 
accordance with the applicable provisions and deadlines established in O.C.G.A. § 13-10-91. Furthermore, the undersigned 
subcontractor will continue to use the federal work authorization program throughout the contract period and the undersigned 
subcontractor will contract for the physical performance of services in satisfaction of such contract only with sub-
subcontractors who present an affidavit to the subcontractor with the information required by O.C.G.A. 

§ 13-10-91(b). Additionally, the undersigned subcontractor will forward notice of the receipt of an affidavit from a sub-
subcontractor to the contractor within five business days of receipt. If the undersigned subcontractor receives notice that a 
sub- subcontractor has received an affidavit from any other contracted sub-subcontractor, the undersigned subcontractor must 
forward, within five business days of receipt, a copy of the notice to the contractor. Subcontractor hereby attests that its federal 
work authorization user identification number and date of authorization are as follows: 

 

 

Federal Work Authorization User Identification Number 

 

Date of Authorization 

 

Name of Subcontractor 

 

Name of Project 

 

Name of Public Employer 

 

I hereby declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct. 

Executed on  ,  , 20  in   (city),   (state). 

 

Signature of Authorized Officer or Agent 

Printed Name and Title of Authorized Officer or Agent 

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN BEFORE ME    ___________________________________ 
ON THIS THE   DAY OF  , 20 . NOTARY PUBLIC 
    My Commission Expires: ______________ 
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-COLLUSION 
  
By responding to this solicitation, the supplier understands and agrees to the following: 
 

1. That the submitted response constitutes an offer, which when accepted in writing by the CITY OF 
THOMASVILLE, GA, and subject to the terms and conditions of such acceptance, will constitute a valid and 
binding contract between the undersigned and the CITY OF THOMASVILLE, GA; and 

2. That the supplier has read the specifications and requirements shown or referenced in the solicitation and that the 
supplier’s response is made in accordance with the provisions of such specifications and requirements except as 
expressly stated otherwise in the supplier’s response; and 

3. That the supplier guarantees and certifies that all items included in the supplier’s response meet or exceed any and 
all such stated specifications and requirements of the solicitation except as expressly stated otherwise in the 
supplier’s response; and 

4. That, if awarded a contract, the supplier will deliver goods and/or services that meet or exceed the specifications 
and requirements of the solicitation except as expressly stated otherwise in the supplier’s response; and 

5. That the response submitted by the supplier shall be valid and held open for a period of one hundred and twenty 
(120) days (or such other time period as identified in the solicitation) from the final solicitation closing date 
and that the response may be held open for an additional period of time subject to the supplier’s consent; and 

6. That the supplier’s response is made without prior understanding, agreement, or connection with any corporation, 
firm, or person submitting a response for the same materials, supplies, equipment, or services and is in all respects 
fair and without collusion or fraud. The supplier understands and agrees that collusive bidding is a violation of 
state and federal law and can result in fines, prison sentences, and civil damage awards; and 

7. That the provisions of the Official Code of Georgia Annotated, Sections 45-10-20 et seq. have not been violated 
and will not be violated in any respect. 

  
DO NOT MODIFY THE BID/PROPOSAL CERTIFICATION TERMS IN ANY WAY.  THIS FORM MUST BE 
COMPLETED, SIGNED AND SUBMITTED WITH YOUR RESPONSE. 
  

Contractor’s Full Legal Name:  
(PLEASE TYPE OR PRINT) 

 
 
 

Authorized Signature:  

Printed Name and Title of Person Signing:  

Date:  

 

Company Address: 
 

 

FAX Number:  
 

Email Address:  
 

*This table must be completed in its entirety by the supplier. 
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ADDENDA ACKNOWLEDGEMENT FORM 
 
The vendor has examined and carefully studied the Specifications and the following Addenda. Receipt of all of which is 
hereby acknowledged: 
 
 
Addendum No:  Dated:  Acknowledgement  
     Initial 
Addendum No:  Dated:  Acknowledgement  
     Initial 
Addendum No:  Dated:  Acknowledgement  
     Initial 

 
 
Vendors must acknowledge any issued addenda. Proposals which fail to acknowledge the vendor’s receipt of any addendum 
will result in the rejection of the proposal if the addendum contained information which substantively changes the Owner’s 
requirement. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 


	REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS
	RFP DESCRIPTION: UTILITY BILLING SOFTWARE – RFP #2025-007
	DUE DATE: NO LATER THAN JULY 16, 2025 @ 11:00 A.M. EST
	 Deliver a quality and fully integrated Microsoft Windows 365-based software solution, that will meet or exceed the RFP requirements.
	 Provide qualified and experienced project management and technical resources to advise stakeholders during the analysis, design, implementation and support phases of the project.
	5.1.1  Please provide the name of the vendor (including their address) submitting the proposal that the City of Thomasville will use to enter into a contractual agreement. Additionally, include the name and contact information for a single point of co...
	5.1.2 The City of Thomasville requires that the proposed software package maintain confidentiality and adhere to high-security standards. What security measures does the software implement to protect data? Is the data encrypted while stored on the ser...
	5.1.3 Is the proposed software solution cloud-based or hosted on-premises?
	5.1.4 Does the software support installation on a VMware host if it is deployed on-premises?
	5.1.5 Does the proposed software solution support integration with Active Directory for authentication and permission management?
	5.1.6 Outline the methods for accessing the proposed billing software, such as a web browser, custom application, remote desktop protocol (RDP) into the server, or a mobile app.
	5.1.7 Runtime Environment: Identify all software present in the solution’s runtime environment, including any external dependencies. Specify any third-party software that Thomasville must acquire to operate the billing solution that is not included in...
	5.1.8 If third-party licenses are necessary to access the proposed software (e.g., Microsoft SQL Client Access Licenses), please specify below. Include any costs associated with third-party licensing in the proposal.
	5.1.9 Please include at least five (5) screenshots of the graphical user interface (GUI).
	5.1.10 Please specify the operating systems that the proposed billing solution supports.
	5.1.12 Determine the specific hardware requirements, such as memory, processor quantity, and interconnectivity, needed to support both production and non-production environments, including development, testing, and disaster recovery.
	5.1.13 Provide or describe a typical release plan for new software releases. This plan should address customer communications, code release and transmittal, customer support under a service agreement, typical release implementation and impacted system...
	6.2.1 Customers with delinquent accounts must be able to process all services or select individual services on their account.
	6.2.2 When a customer becomes delinquent for the first time in a calendar year, the current system generates a notification order to ensure that a door card is delivered to the customer. Additionally, it grants the customer a three-day extension befor...
	6.2.4 When a customer is delinquent, the system must be able to create either a Notify Order, as described above, or a Cutoff Order for a technician to disconnect services at the location.
	6.2.5 When an account is marked as delinquent, can the proposed solution create an automatic note on the account identifying it as delinquent for historical purposes?
	6.2.6 The City of Thomasville’s current billing platform uses a collections process for processing delinquent accounts. A process is typically run every day to identify delinquent customers. There are days that the City does not run the process; there...
	6.2.7 As a part of the delinquent process, when an account has not been paid in full by the due date, the City of Thomasville’s current billing software will create a “Friendly Reminder Letter” once every year and it will also place a hold on the acco...
	6.2.8 When an account becomes delinquent, does the proposed software package allow for cutting off individual services or all services on the account?
	6.2.9 The software solution must be capable of managing holds and alternate due dates.
	6.2.24  In certain situations, a customer may receive a special exemption, such as a cut-out exemption, tax exemption, or late-fee exemption. The proposed software must have the functionality to designate accounts or services as exempt for various rea...
	6.3.6 Does the proposed software solution support the automatic processing of bank drafts and credit card  transactions?
	Response:
	6.3.7 If a customer has multiple accounts with the City of Thomasville, does the proposed software solution allow payments for all accounts to be made at once, or can only one account be paid at a time?
	Response:
	6.3.15 Does the proposed software solution have the ability to print a receipt when a customer pays in person?
	6.6.3 Access Control: The proposed software solution must include access control features. Proposers should describe methods for implementing user and role-based access, as well as how they will detect and alert on failed access attempts.
	6.6.4 Authentication: Describe the use of Active Directory for the proposed billing software solution, focusing on role and user-based authentication services. Include methods and mechanisms to detect and alert for failed authentication attempts.
	6.6.5 Confidentiality: Describe solution methods, processes, or other components available to support solution confidentiality relative to the users and solution resources being used. Include approaches and mechanisms to detect and alert confidentiali...
	6.6.7 Outline the security roadmap for the utility billing solution, detailing investment rationale, key objectives, relevant metrics, and priorities about market and regulatory drivers, threat assessments, and testing protocols.
	6.6.8 Integrating a Security Development Lifecycle within the overall Development Lifecycle is crucial. This involves methodologies, tools, best practices, and quality gates to ensure security throughout the development process.
	6.6.9 Describe the types of security testing/certification, both executed by the Proposer and executed via a 3rd party, that have been performed on the utility billing Software. List any 3rd party certifications achieved. Include any test reports, vul...
	6.6.10 Multifactor Authentication. The utility billing software solution must support multifactor authentication.  Describe solution methods, processes, or other components available to support multifactor authentication frameworks. This may include a...
	6.6.11 Describe approaches and mechanisms for Malware protection within the solution, including but not limited to anti-virus or other anti-malware components.  Describe approaches and mechanisms to detect and alert failed Malware protection compromis...
	6.6.12 The utility billing software solution must incorporate administrative security measures. Describe the strategies and mechanisms for managing security within the system, including methods to detect and alert attempts to compromise security admin...

	6.7  Reporting:  To effectively utilize the utility billing software, the City of Thomasville requires strong reporting capabilities. The Proposer should detail the software’s reporting features, highlighting out-of-the-box options, user-configurable ...
	6.7.1 Proposer's solution will enable authorized users to generate ad-hoc reports. Please identify its compatibility with third-party reporting tools such as Crystal Reports and SQL Reports, in detail.
	6.7.2 The proposed solution must provide selected reports in digital formats such as PDF, Excel, etc. (Please describe it in detail.)
	6.7.3 The solution proposed must allow for scheduling selected reports to be posted in a designated directory or on a website.
	6.7.4 The proposed solution must allow for configuring the structure and format of reports in detail.
	6.8.2 Please describe the process for implementing planned and unplanned patches or upgrades to the utility billing software and the host operating systems. Specifically, indicate whether these tasks require the application to be offline and for what ...
	6.8.3 All software and related release documentation must be provided electronically. This documentation includes release notes, application notes, configuration information, and installation details. The Proposer must explain how it will comply with ...

	7.1   Utility Billing Deployment Project Management:  The City of Thomasville is requesting baseline service models and pricing for the implementation of project services described below. The City of Thomasville requires a fixed price bid (Not to Exce...
	7.1.1 Provide a comprehensive project plan and approach, which includes the project schedule, resource requirements, task interdependencies, deliverables and their contents, major milestones, and checkpoints.
	7.1.2 Summarize the project team proposed by the Proposer. Represent the project team members in an organizational chart and outline each member's roles and responsibilities.
	7.1.3 Please provide the City of Thomasville with an estimate of the operational support resources needed to implement and manage the proposed utility billing software solution. The proposer should clearly outline the necessary tasks, as well as the n...
	7.1.4 The proposer must support the City of Thomasville in creating and maintaining the comprehensive project plan, which includes the project schedule, resource requirements, task interdependencies, major milestones, and checkpoints.
	7.1.5 The proposer must conduct an initial project risk assessment and develop a mitigation strategy with input from the City of Thomasville. Proposers are required to provide updates and assist the City of Thomasville in managing risks and dependenci...
	7.1.6 The proposer is required to provide the City of Thomasville with updates on project issues, action items, and resolutions to ensure that the issue/action item log remains current. Additionally, the proposer must attend the regularly scheduled pr...
	7.1.7 Outline the standard internal QA process for handling major and minor releases, patches, and other updates before delivering the code to the City of Thomasville.
	7.1.8 Outline the standard change management process for utility billing software in support of communications, transmittals, installation, and validation of major and minor releases for the City of Thomasville.
	7.1.9 Identify System Integration companies experienced in providing integration services for the proposer’s utility billing solution. Provide an overview of their experience scope, including product installation, configuration, maintenance support, a...
	7.2.1 Provide a comprehensive list of all system documentation to be made available, including a Table of Contents and an Index for each document. This includes solution architecture documents, operations manuals, administration manuals, training manu...
	7.3.1 The proposer must submit an example training plan outlining how they envision delivering training services to the City of Thomasville, such as through webinars or on-site sessions. The City of Thomasville intends to provide a dedicated configura...
	7.5.1 The proposer is required to develop and document the system configuration, and customization needs to meet the business requirements of the City of Thomasville. This task encompasses both the mandatory and optional functions outlined in this RFP...
	7.5.2 The proposer must clearly define and document the requirements for converting essential data from existing data stores to the new utility billing solution.
	7.5.3 The proposer must consult with the City of Thomasville to develop and document the overall system integration requirements, including data transformation needs, frequency or invocation mechanisms, latency requirements, exception handling criteri...
	7.5.4 The proposer must supply standard system administration and database management manuals and offer consultation services to the City of Thomasville. This consultation will assist in developing the specific requirements for the City’s utility bill...
	7.6.1 The proposer must specify the computer hardware, operating systems, LAN/WAN configurations, and other infrastructure requirements necessary to support the technical and performance needs of the utility billing software solution, with input from ...
	7.6.2 The proposer must offer on-site support, guidance, and "train-the-trainer" training during the initial installation and configuration of the utility billing software. Proposers are responsible for leading validation and tuning efforts to ensure ...
	7.7.1 The proposer must assist with the system's integration, performance, availability, user acceptance, and final site acceptance tests. It is important to note that unit testing is considered a part of the development process and is, therefore, the...
	7.7.3 The proposer is responsible for developing integrated test procedures based on the standard test procedures they provide. This includes all tests specified in the test plan, along with the expected results for each test. At a minimum, the test p...
	7.7.4 The City of Thomasville will supply the necessary data for testing. If this test data is not readily available, the proposer must provide a sample of standard test data.
	7.7.5 The proposer must provide on-site assistance during the final system acceptance testing to ensure the system is ready to support end-to-end business processes.
	7.8.1 With input and participation from the proposer, the City of Thomasville will devise and document the plan and processes for maintaining the configurations and versions of hardware, software, and documents received over the project development an...
	7.8.2 The proposer is required to provide updates to the documents throughout the project lifecycle, which includes the phases of requirements gathering, design, system implementation, and final production. The City of Thomasville will ensure that all...
	7.10.1 The proposer must provide a detailed description of the warranty and support for the supplied products, custom developments, and system interfaces, including specific support terms. Both software and documentation must be covered under the warr...

	8.1  The City of Thomasville is interested in understanding the proposer’s ability to support and ensure the successful delivery of the utility billing software project. This includes enabling all necessary features while supporting the benefits and v...
	Response:
	8.3  The proposer must express its willingness and capability to provide comprehensive system integration that goes beyond the requirements outlined in this RFP.
	8.4  Provide a detailed description of your vision for developing utility billing software, including your strategy, platform evolution, and solution roadmap.
	8.5  Please provide your most recent product roadmap, including timeline expectations and anticipated functional commercial availability for each subsequent release. Also, highlight any planned major evolutions of your current technology or architecture.
	8.6  Describe how any future platform or technology evolution will be managed to ensure operational compatibility and interoperability within your current solution.
	8.7  The City of Thomasville seeks to understand the release experiences of the proposer. The proposer should describe the actual major and minor release schedule from January 2024 to the present, along with a summary of the release notes.
	8.8  Describe how the development lifecycle maintains compatibility with required 3rd party packages, including Win O/S, SQL, etc. The City of Thomasville requires backward compatibility of the utility billing software solution for not less than two (...
	9.1   Please provide the name and address of the vendor submitting the proposal with which the City of Thomasville will enter into a contractual agreement. Additionally, include the name and contact information for a single point of contact, which sho...
	9.2   Please provide a comprehensive list of all affiliates of the contracting entity. This should include subsidiaries, parent companies, and any other subsidiaries of the parent companies. A company is considered a parent if it directly owns or cont...
	9.3   Provide a chart showing all ownership relationships from the parent company through its direct and indirect subsidiaries of the contracting entity.
	9.5   Please create a list of alliances and formal partnerships that enhance your product or service offerings. Be sure to include all relevant aspects of the City of Thomasville’s utility billing software technologies, IT platforms, system integratio...
	9.6   Please provide a list of your utility billing production solution deployments for utility companies in North America. If possible, include at least five (5) references from a municipality of similar size and scope. The references should include ...
	9.7   Please provide at least five (5) verifiable references from the list of all deployments. These references should relate to utility services or be comparable in scope to the City of Thomasville. The City of Thomasville intends to reach out to the...
	9.8   Is your firm currently taking legal action against another entity concerning your utility billing software solution? Alternatively, is your firm defending itself against legal action related to this software? If applicable, please provide detail...
	9.9  The proposer must include their Tax Identification Number (TIN).
	9.10  Provide copies of the audited annual financial statements for the two (2) most recently completed fiscal years.
	9.11  Detail all significant investments made in the past two (2) years related to asset acquisition, capital infrastructure upgrades, and other relevant areas pertinent to this RFP.
	9.13  Provide the latest financial ratings from Moody's, S&P, or Dun & Bradstreet, and identify any rating changes that have occurred in the past two (2) years.
	9.15   Please specify whether the proposed utility billing software vendor has ever filed for bankruptcy.
	9.18  Describe how customer satisfaction is measured for software applications, project implementation, and customer service and support.
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